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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR's REPORT

To the Members of M/e. INNMAR TOURISM & HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statementa

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of INNMAR TOURISM & HOTELS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”} which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and
the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), and the statement of cash
flow for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information {(“financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended, and other the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responaeibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur opinion on the Financial Statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures thereto, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,
The Company’s Board report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information cmd W will ant
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, [ > f ‘%ﬂ——
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Continuation Shee

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Dirvectors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs (financial position), profit/loss and other comprehensive income financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accou nting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with relevant rules issued there under, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are teasonable and prudents and design, implementacion and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
nuisstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the linancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as n golng coneern, diselosing, as applicable, matters velated to gomng
coneern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Boavd of Divectors eithey
intends to liguidate the Company or to coage operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material mmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinjon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arvise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected Lo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercize professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from [raud is higher than [or one resulling
[rom error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
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Continuation Shee

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
.and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of Companies Act, 2013 of
India (the Act), we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order,

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as vequired by law have been kept by the Company
so far as il appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive
income}, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
hooks of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules,
2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the divectors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Acl.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the interna! financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refers to our separate report
in “Annexure B”. our report expresses an unmeodified opinion on the adequacy gnd
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operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information, the provisions of section 197(16) is not
applicable to the company being a private limited company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L.

ii.

iil.

iv.

The Company has no pending litigations that would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
shave premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether secorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall,

* Whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

* Provide any guarantee, security or the behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and leljef, ,
no funds have becen received by the company [rom any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (*Funding Parties"), with the undersianding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,

* whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons o entities
identified in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries"} or

* Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis
statement.

In our opinion & according to the information & explanations given to us , no
dividends has been declared or paid during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edil log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered

i\

with, as proviso to Rule 301} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1,2023, reporting under Rule 1 (g2 ol the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
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Continuation Sheet"

Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2025,

For CNGSN and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0049153/5200036

PNy
' 8 g =
]
*
Bhavana G %?
Partner &) D ACK

Membership No.: 269079
Place: Bangalore
Date: 22 May 2025

UDIN- 25269079BMLWZM5754
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CARO 2020 Report for INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (For the
Financial Year ended 31 March 2025)

Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report (Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date) .

We report that:

D {a)( A)The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Eq uipment,

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment
have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. No material
discrepuncies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The title deeds of all immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name of the company.

() The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the year. However, the company had elected to use fair value as deemed cost on transition
o Ind AS effective 1 April 2023.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any henami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988,

i) (&) The physical verification of the inventory was conducted af reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion, the toverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and there is no material discrepancies noticed on such verification.

(b) The company does not have working capital loans from banks or financial institutions and
hence, the verification of quarterly statement submission to them does not arise.

ii.i)According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loan,
secured, or unsecurod (o companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other parties covered in
the register required under section 189 of companies act 2013, Accordingly, subsection (a), {b), (o),
(d), {e), & () of paragraph (iii) of the order is not applicable.

iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security or made any investments coveted
under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order
is not applicable,

v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits from the public
during the year and hence, the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other rvelevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules fra med thereunder ave not applicable.

vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 for the services rendered by the company. 0 :
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vii) (a) The company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (GST), Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, and other statutory dues.

o The following disputed dues of GST have not been deposited as on 31 March
2025:GST: Total demand of INR 4.83 million for FY 2017-18 to 2019-20. The
company has filed appeals which are pending disposal, Provision has been madc
for part of the demand {INR 0.94 million), and the remaining INR 3.89 million is
under dispute with a strong case for a favourable order.

viii)According to the information and explanations given to us, Lthere was no transaction found
unrecorded in the books of account of the company which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessment under the income tax act, 1961,

ix) The company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, bank,
government or debenture holders, hence the provision of clause 3 (ix) of Companies (Auditor's)
Report Ovder, 2020 is not applicable.

x)As per the explanation provided to us, the company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer/furthexr public offer (including debt instruments) or preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionatly convertible). Hence.
this clause is not applicable.

xi) a) During the course of our examination of the books of records of the company, carried oul in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud, nor we have been
informed of such case by the management.

b) To the best of our knowledge and information with us there is no instance of fraud reportable
under sub section (12) of section 143 of companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT
— 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of companies (Audit and Auditors) rules, 2014 with Central
Government.

¢) As per the information and explanations given by management there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the company during the vear.

xii}In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause (a), (1) & (¢} of paragraph 3{xii} of the order is nol
applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable, and the details
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by IND AS

xiv)} Company is not required to have Internal Audit System as per section 138 of the Companies
Act , 2013 and hence the provision of clause 3 (xiv) of Companies (Auditor's) Report Ovcler, 2020 is
not applicable.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
company has not entered inte any non-cash transactions with its divectors or persons connaehied
with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the companies Act, 2013 are not Appligatile ")
to the company. “f %
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xvi) a) The company is not required to be registered under section 46-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

b) The company is not Non-Banking Financial Company, hence the reporting in this clausge is not
required.

¢) The company is not Non-Banking Financial Company, hence the reporting in this clause 18 not.
required.

d) This clause is not applicable to the company as it is not Core Investment Company (CIC).

xvii} The company has incurred cash losses of INR 135.94 million in the financial year ended 31
March 2025. No cash losses were incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

a) nothing has come to cur attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the date of
balance sheet date.

b} We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
c) Sufficient & Appropriate audit evidence has been cbtained with respect to going concern

xx) The company is required to spend on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135
of the Companies Act. It has spent INR 1.12 miltion towards CSR activities during the year, which
is in line with its obligations.

xxi) The company is not required to prepare consclidated financial statements, and hence this
clause is not applicable.

For CNGSN and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FREN: 0049155/5200036

Bhavana G
Partner
Membership No.: 269079
Place: Bangalore

Date: 22 May 2025

UDIN- 25269079BMLWZMb5754
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ANNEXURE — B TO THE INDEPENDENT A UDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial controls over financial statements under clause (i) of sub section
(3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. (Referred to in Paragraph 2{(f) of Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements in Our Independent Auditor's Report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the INNMAR TOURISM
& HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™ as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management ‘s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is respansible for establishing and Mmaintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controls over linancial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ( ICAI' ). These responsibilities include the design, implemenation and
maintenance of adequate internal linancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to conipany’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section of 143(10)
of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan & perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financtal controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Qurp

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding

of internal financial controls over flanancial reporting, assessing the risk thal a material wealkness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating cffectivencss of internal co'?.T{}'E?\“}.@.ﬁ jorel.

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors Judgement , ;.rlqi'.'}ji'-iiTi_ thif AN\
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Continuation Sheet.'

assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial reporting
of the company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reproting and preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with genarally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

i. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company,

.  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the Company; and

iil.  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operaling

effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal controls over financial repo:'{.i|1g’,‘gﬁ‘i!_l‘@},ﬁi|ﬂ" '

established by the company considering the essential components of internal controls sl.y@iiff‘m '
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Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI} .

For CNGSN and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0049155/3200036

/ '--C“r\’: :
Bborana G )
\L:<BENGﬁLURU ]'* )
Bhavana G \fh/fj " ,.'U/] v/

Partner
Membership No.: 269079
Place: Bangalore

Date: 22 May 2025

UDIN- 25269079BMLWZM5754



INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UdS101KAZO0IPTCOI2TTS
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Al amounis in INR millions, undess otherwive stated)
As at Asat Asat
Nate 31 March 2025 3t March 2014 1 April 2023
ASSETS
Non=current nesets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,569 25 1,588 84 1,608 45
Capital work-insprogress 3 50 54 - =
Financial assets
Other fimancial assets 4 3159 2113 7872
Tncome tax assets (nel} 5 586 702 26 69
Other non-gurrent assets 7 044 1972 10,50
Tatal mom-current assets 1,629.68 131771 1,724.36
Current assets
Inventories 8 164 145 161
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 1146 631 %0
Cash and cash equivalenis 10 15 86 706 i 55
Loans [l - 1541 7844
Other financial assets 12 431 . -
Other current assets 17 1340 328 508
Totul curremt assets 85,59 344 119.69
TOTAL ASSETS 1,71527 1 12 1, 844,05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eqguity
Equily share capital 14 84 38 8433 84 38
Other equity 15 1,700 16 1,358 %6 1,316 58
Total equity 1,284.54 1,442.64 1,400,96
|Liabilities
Non-current Habilities
Provisions 16 150 174 032
Deferred 1ax liabilities (nel) & 37029 3759 380 27
Total man- cwrrent liabllicles 371.79 37765 381.09
Current liabllitles
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 17
= total oulstanding does of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 4 46 - -
- botal ouistandmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enerprises 2547 2347 2947
Other financial habilities 18 254 512 468
Other current liabilities 19 063 266 363
Provisions 20 25 84 058 034
Income tax liahility {net) 21 - - 2368
Total enrreat liabilitles 58.94 31.83 6200
‘Tatal liabilities 430.73 409 .48 443.0%
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,11527 1.852.12 1,844.05
As per our repont of even date atlached
For CNGSN and Associates LLP oo For and on behalf of Board of Directocs of
Chartered Accountants AR ag INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
RN 0491557 5200036 Vs
Iy M
MO Y .
|Bhavann G Manish Bhagai AyusthSidghal
Vet Director Director
M Nuy- 269079 DIN: 08092409 DIN: 10613564
Place :Banpalore o Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date 22 May 2025 Date 22 May 2035 Date 22 May 20125




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UISI01KA2003PTCO032773

(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise staied)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other meome

Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed
Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense

(Loss)/profit before tax and exceptional items
Exceptional items
(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Tax expense for earlier years
Deferred tax

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Re-measurement gainf(loss) on defined benefit obligations
- Revaluation gain

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
{(Loss)/Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each):
Basic (INR)

Diluted (INR)

As per our report of even date attached

For CNGSN and Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 049158/ 5201 W36

Bhavana G

Fariner

M.No - 269079 G v PO
~ZHED ALY

Place :Bangalore
Date 22 Muy 2025

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note

24
25
28

Farnings/(loss) before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax

26
27

29

30

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
205.56 24831
818 19.85
213.74 268.16
2532 33.15
5718 61.64
157.75 90.89
240.25 185.68
(26.51) 82.48
0.05 0.04
23.05 2275
23.10 22.79
{49.61) 59.69
58.70 -
(108.31) 59.69
2 22,61
56.30 -
(5.62) (4.36)
50.68 18.25
(158.99) 41.44
0.06 2N
0.83 0.51
0.89 0.22
(158.10) 41,66
(18.34) 491
(18.834) 4.91

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Manish Bhagat
Director
DIN: 08092409

Place: Gurugram
Date - 22 Muv 20725

AyushSinghal
Director
DIN: 10613564

Place: Gurugram
Date - 22 May 2025
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INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U3S101 KA2003PTC032773

|Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
[nterest income
Other Mon Cash Adjustment
Opevating profit before movement in assets and labilities
Decrease / (increase) in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivablas
Decrease / (increase) in other current financial assets
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets
Decrease / (increase) in Income tax asset
Increase / (decrease) in tax liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in cwrment trade payables
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Increase f (decrease) in other financial babilities
Cash generated by operating activities
Tncome taxes paid (net)
Net cash gemerated from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits
Bank deposits made
(Inerease)/Decrease in Security Deposits
(Increase) / decrease in current loans
Interest received
Decrease / (increase) in other non current assets
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Finance costs paid
Net cash used in financing aclivitiea (C)

Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
= iy curment accounts
Cash on hand

As per our report of even date attached

For CNGSN and Associaies LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN; 049155/ 5200036 -

Bhavann G '
Partper \

M No - 260079

Place :Banpalore
Date 22 May 2025

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(10831 59.69
2305 2275
005 004
{6.28) (9.24)
149 023
(90.00) 73.47
{0.18} 016
{5.14} 1970
(43.22) -
(10.13) 1.30
1.16 19.66
- {23.68)
6.46 {6.20)
(2.03) 0.97)
2501 1.16
(2.58) 0.44
{120.65) 85.57
(56.30) (22.61)
(176.95) 62.96
(54.60} (3.14)
82226 513.93
(615.26) (646.43)
054 0.09
1541 63.04
6.28 924
10.27 (0.22
184.90 (63.49)
(0.05) (0.04)
(0.05) (0.04)
7.90 (1.58)
7.96 8.54
15.86 7.96
As at As at

31 March 2028

31 March 2024

1567 758
19 .38
15.86 7.96

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
INNMAR TOURLISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

Vi

Director
DIMN: 08092409

Place Gurugram
Dite 22 May 2025

Ayush |

nzhal

Pirecior
DIN: 10613564

Place: Guropram
Date 23 Muy 2023
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Innmar Tourism and Hotels Private Limlted

CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

1a(i) Corporate information

Innmar Tourism and Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company') was incorporated on December 22, 2003
under the Cotnpanies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily engaged in acquisition, development,
operation and management of Hotels in India.

During the current year, SAMHI Hotels Limited has acquired 100% share capital of Innmar Tourism
and Hotels Private Limited constituting 8,437,500 equity shares of INR 10 each on 04 October 2024
for a purchase consideration of INR 2140,18 million.

1a(ii) Basis of preparation

A. The Company has voluntarily adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in the financial year end
31 March 2025 and accordingly the financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, (*Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

For all the period up to and including the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 (*Act’), read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2021
(as amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act (*Indian GAAP’ or ‘Previous
GAAP?)

These financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, are the first financial statements
of the Company prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer note 38 for information on how the
Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 22 May 2025.

Details of the Company’s material accounting policies, including changes thereto, are inctuded in
Note 2,

B. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. A)l amounts have been rounded to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost besis.
D. Critical estimates and judgments
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the

application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.




innmar Toarism and Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year is included in the following notes:
¢ Financial instruments - Note 34
» Assessment of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets — Note 3
¢ Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits (including actuarial assumptions) —
Note 25
¢ Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources — Note 31
¢ Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilized - Note 6

E. Courrent/ Non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
This includes a finance team of Holding Company that has overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values and reports directly to the chief
financial officer,

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

» Level 1; quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

+ Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs),

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a tiability fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,




Innmar Tourism and Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U3S101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

D

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

2. Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment
Recoguition and measurement

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment (including capital-work-in-progress) are measured at cost, which
includes capitalized borrowing cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, Freehold land is carried at historical cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.
Transition to IndAS

The Company had elected to use the fair value of all the item of property, plant and equipment on the
date of transition i.e. 1 April 2023, and designate the same as deemed cost.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of item of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.




Innmar Tourism and Hotels Private Limited

CIN; U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{4l amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

2)

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its
estimates of useful lives best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / (up to} the date on which
the asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

« y Useful life as per
Asset category Useful Life (Years) Schedule I (Years)
Building 15-60 years 60 years
Computers and accessories 3-6 years 3-6 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years 15 vears
[Furniture and fixtures 5-8 years 8 years

* For the above class of assets, the management based on assessment of external valuation specialist
and internal technical evaluation, has determined that the useful lives as given above best represent the
period over which management expects to use these assets.

Freehold land is not depreciated.
Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party io
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade recejvable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

The Company’s financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these arc measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest (*"EIR’) method.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through statement of profit and loss
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of
profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in statement of profit and loss. The Company has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through statement of profit and loss.




Innmar Tourism and Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U35101KA2003PTCO032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR millions, sinless otherwise stated)

Classification and Subsequent measurement
Financial assels

On initial recognition, a financial assets is classified as measured at:
¢ Amortised cost
o  FVOCI — debt investment;
¢ FVOCI - equity investment;
s FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial asset, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the changes in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and imterest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

—  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity,




Innmar Tourism and Hotels Private Limited

CIN; U3S101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets,

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the

Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the

financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash

flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and

at FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment

losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI ate reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

investments at recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly

FVOCI represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any imterest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.




Innmar Tourism and Hotels Private Limited

CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In such case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsening

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net smount presented in the Balance Sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
itintends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial assets are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
maodified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the camrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
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CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

3) Impairment
A. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except
for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward- looking information.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

B. Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of

impairment based on internal/extemal factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

(B
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{4l amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

5

6)

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest Company of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impainnent loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. They are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such
a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's camrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Inventories

[nventories which comprises stock of food and beverages (including liquor) and stores and operating
supplies are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.
In determining the cost, first in first out (“FIFO”) method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs to make the sale,

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Expected
future operating losses are not provided for.

When the Company expects some or all of the expenditure required to setile a provision will be
reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognized when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is
treated as a separate asset.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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{All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.
7) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly withing
the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent Asset

Contingent asset is not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

9) Employee benefits
Short-term employee beneflts

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia, The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan - Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the profit or loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is
less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date,
the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Defined beneflt plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligations,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.

Other long-term employee benefits — compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months afier the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit, The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
tenders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments

and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

10) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the
passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract, Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer),

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation services

Revenue comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to
hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages
which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have
been provided as per the contract with the customer.

11) Recognition of interest income or expense
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

12) Foreign currency
Foreign currency Tramsactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of Company
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
exchange differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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13) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable rightto set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneousty,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for
* temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilitics in a transaction
that:

- is not a business combination; and
- at the time of the transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
(ii) does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences
* temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
* taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable
temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a
deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the business plans in the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offSet current tax
liabilities and assets and they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to seitle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
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or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
14) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components and for which discrete financial information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM)

Identification of segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources 1o
the segments and assess their performance.

15) Earnings per share

Basic Earning Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit (or loss) attributable to the owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted Earning Per Share

Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit (considered in determination of basic
eamings per share) after considering the effect of interest and other financing costs or income (net of
attributable taxes) associated with dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basis earnings per share adjusted for the weighted average number
of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share adjusted for the weighted average
number of equity shares that would have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares,

16) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balance with banks, demand deposits with banks and
other short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

17) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present eamings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and
tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company
measures EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the
Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense, exceptional items and
tax expense.
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18) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.

B
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INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U3S101 KA2003PTCD32773

Notes to the finamcial statements for the year emded 31 March 2025

(AN amounts in INR mitlions, unless otherwise stated)
6 Income (ax
Deferred liabilities (net)
Opening Balance

Realised in current period
Closing Balance

A: The major components of income tax expense / (income) are

Recognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Tax expense for saclier years
Deferred tax

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax exy and the

Loss before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate
Tax Effect of:

Others

Effective tax rate

C. Deferred tax assets / liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Loss allowance for trade receivables

Provision for employee benefits

Deferved tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Net deferred tax asset / (Jiability)

. Movement in temporary differences

31 March 2025

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
37591 38027
(5.62) (4.36)
370.29 375N
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- 2261
56,30 -
(5.62) 4 36)
50.68 18.26
ting profit multilpied by Company's domestic tax rate)
For the year For the year
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount Y Amount
(108 31) 4144
(2726} 2547 1043
21 64 18.89 783
(5.62) 44,00 18.26
As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
023 - -
101 0.59 029
1.25 059 0,29
(371.54) {376 500 {380.55)
{371.54) (376.5M [3R0.55)
(370.2% (375.91) (380.26}

Particolars Balance as at Deferred tax on Balance as at
01 April 2024 (A) | differences generated | 31 March 2025
iR) {C=A+RY
Deferred tax ssnels
Loss allawance for trade receivables - 0.23 0.23
Provision for emplovee benefits 0.59 043 1.01
Deferred tax labilities
Progerty. plant and eauipment and other intangible assets (376.50) 496 (371.54)
Tatal {375.91) 5.62 (370.29)
31 March 2024
Particulars Balance as at Deferred tax on Balance as at
L April 2023 (A) | differences generated | 31 March 2024
(R} (C=A+R)
Deferved tax assets
Provision for emplovee benefit: 0.29 030 059
Deferred tax Yiahilities
Pronertv, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (380.55) 405 (376 500
‘Total (380.26) 4358 i375.91)
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MNotes to the Anancial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in INR millions, unkess otherwise stated)

1

Other non-current asseis Asat Asut Asat
{Unsecured considered good) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Taxes paid onder protest 044 10.72 10.50
.44 1.1 10.50
As at As at Asat
Inventories 31 March 1025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
fvalued af ife lower of cost and net realisable value)
Food and beverages 1.30 1.05 113
Stores and operating supplies 0.34 0.40 0.38
1.64 145 1.61
Current financial assets - Trade receivables As at Asat As at
{Unsecured) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Trade receivables
~Considered good 1176 6,02 19.69
-Credit impaired - - -
Unbilted revenue
«Considered good 0.63 0.29 65,32
1239 6.31 26,01
Less : Loss allowance {0.93) - s
11.46 6.1 26,0
a) The Company's expasure to credit and ewrrency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in nots 34.
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Ouistanding for fallawin: riads from date of tranzacton
Particulars Unbilled | Less ¢han & month |6 months - 1 year| 1-2years | 2-3 years | Move than 3 vears Tatal
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — 063 Lo 19 |.44 004 - 0.09 12.39
considered good
(i1} Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit
risk - - . - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade ivables — - - - - -
credit impaired
As at 31 March 2024
Outatanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars Unbilled | Less than & ths |6 the- L vear| 1-2vears | 2-3vears | More than 3 vears Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — 029 472 053 050 018 010 6.31
cansidered gond

() Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit
risk

{(il) Undisputed Trade receivables —

credit impaired

The Company does not have any disputed trade receivables as at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023,
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[INNMAT TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CTN: UISIEUKAZMAPTCR2TT

Notes ta Uhe Bnancial statementa for the year eaded 31 March 2025

0 amowts tn INR millions exceps for ghare delonls aud unfess otherwize siofed?

14 Equity sharz caplhal Adul A Agal
31 March 1025 231 Marrh 2824 1 April 2023
Numiber ol shares Amuurd Nursber of dhirrs Amuanl Number of shares Ampmit
Aulhorised share capital
Equity shares of TNR 10 cach 150,00 0500 15000 1,50,00.000 L300 1,50, (40, (MM 150,00
L,50,40,800 150,00 1.50,00,008_ 15008 1,50,00,000 150,00
Tasued,, swlsscribedd and fully puid wp
Equity shares of INR 30 each 1437500 2438 #4.31,500 2438 437500 i
B3 500 84,08 £4,31,508 [TED) BITE |
2) Recuncilialion of {lec cquily shares outstanding s e beginsing and i the endl of repartg year
A at Asal ETE ]
1 Marth 2025 31 March ¥24 | Apri)l 2023
Equity Shares Number of shares Ammouat Number of sharet Amaunl Nursher of thared Amound
Althe besiming of the 1y ear RANT500 AR 24,17 5} #1385 R437.500 LARE}
Balance at the end of the year T T e T O TR i 34
b) Righta, preferences amil rediriciions stached (s equily shures
The Comparty has ondy one chiss of equity shares hating the par vahse of INR 10 per sharg. Each holder of equity share {s entitked Lo one voie per share. The equity shates are entitked 1o receiy ¢ dividend as and when declared
In the even of liquidation of U Compony, the kalder of cquity sharcs will be enlitled 1o recene rermadning assets of the Cotngany, after distribution of all jal amounts The i will be ln prop 10 Uk munbcr of cquity shares held by tic|
sharcholders
) Details of sharchobders hobding meee thaw $% shares
Asul Asul Aial
3 Murch H25 31 March 1024 ¥ Ageil 023
Naunia of shureholder MNumber of shares %% ol hulding. MNumber of shares %% uf mAdine Nursler of shares %o ol kelding
Equity shwres
SAMHT Haels Linnited, the hokding conmpamy w ¢ 114 October 2024 B4,37.500 [LI1C-Y = - = =
Mr A Murli Krishna Reddy E . 2B, 11,500 % 18,12, 500 3%
Ms (G Asgnija Reddy 22,16, 250 26% 1116250 15
Mr 5 Aslok Yardhan Reddy D400 1N HA0AM0 1%
Mr 5 Pritees Vardian Peddy 6,70 ¥ 6.77.190 Ly
Mz 5 Shashakala Reddy - 1153 3 H% 1193840 14%4]
br. 0 Rajshekar Reddy - 596,250 ™ 596,250 Tl
dy Detalls wf shares held by promolors
As al 31 March 2025
Moo of shares at the  Change dwring (e Ma. of shares at the % change during
S Mo Promoter Name Ve pi gl or i veur %4 of Total Shares \hé mear
1 M A Murall K rsfioa Bodidy 12500 (2K, 12 500) - 0% T
2 Ms G Avanija Reddy 2216250 (22, 16,2500 - 4 1%
i Mr. 5 Ashok Vardhan Reddy 440,810 (870 - L 190%
4 Mr. 8 Pritlvvl Voidhai Rieddy 6,73, T (6,77, 7903 a 100%%
5 M & Shashikala Reddy 193,840 L 93.840% - L] ooes
L] Wr. G Raishlar Reddy 506,250 (5,96, 250y - [ 100%
T SAMHI Hotels Limnited* - 24,317,500 B4.37 500 00 1o
R AT 500 - 14,17 500 10045
e Gyama Das holds | equity share 25 3 nomince slarclolder
The entine sharcholding of the Company has been acquired by SAMHT Hotcls Limited on 4 Oclober 2024
Anat 31 Murch 2024
Mo, of shurcs o the  Chisige during the N, oé shares at the %% change during
5.5 Fromater Name hieginming of e yesr sear gndaftheyear o TutabShares the year
I r. A Murali K elslis Reddy 2K 1T 500 - ¥, 12,500 EELY Wo clangn
2 s G Aveniig Reddy THI6.250 12 16,250 W Mo change
1 Mr § Aphok Vardhum Reddy 940870 940,970 1% Mo change
4 e 5 Pt Vardbe eddy 6711190 677,790 % Ho change
s Ms 5 Shashikuala Reddy - 11,93,840 1% Mo change
f Mr 0 Raishekar Reddv - 393250 ™ No change
- R4 37 500 1%
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Notes to the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amotnis int TNR miflions except for share details and unfess otherwise siated)

15 Other equity

Capital redemplion reserve
General Reverse

Retained eamings

Other comprehensive income

a) Capital Redempiion Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the vear

b) General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at (he end of the year

This represents appropriation of retained earnings and are available for distribution to sharsholders.

¢) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Loss for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings rep t the amount of accumulated profits of the Company

d) Other comprehensive income

Balance at the beginning of the year

R t of defined benefit liability / asset (net of tax})
Transferred to retained earnings

Revaluation gain

Balance at the end of the year

Asat
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Asz at
1 April 2023

6563 6563 6563
44,72 44 72 44 72
1,088 47 1,247 40 1,206.23
1.34 0,51 -
1.200.16 1,358.26 1,316.58 |
As at As at As ab
31 March 2025 3 March 2024 1 April 2023
6563 65.63 65.63
65.63 65.63 65.63
44.72 44.72 44.72
44.72 44,72 44.72
1,247 40 1,206.23 1.206.23
(158.99) 41.44 -
0.06 0.27 -
1,088.47 1,247.40 1,206.23
0.51 -
0.06 {0.27)
{0.06) 027 -
0383 .51 -
134 0.51 -

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability comprises actuarial gains and losses and revaluation gain on property, plant and ¢quipment




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: USSI0KAZMIPTCO32TTS

Notes to the finamcial statements for the year emded 31 March 2025
(A gmounts in INR millions, unless otherwise siaved}

16  Nom current Provisions Asat As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Provision foc employee benefils
Gratuity 087 078 049
Compensated absences 063 097 033
1.50 1.74 1,82
17 Current financial abilities - Trade payables A mt As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small #nierprises (MSME) 1496 - -
- lotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2547 1347 2967
29.93 23.47 20.67 |
a} The Company's exposurs to cwtency and liquidicy risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 34
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2025
CQuisianding for following periods from the date of trangaction
Particulars Accrue: Lesa than | year|  1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
(11 Total outstanding dues of MSME 446 - - - 4 46
(ii} Tolal ding dues of creditors other than MSME 1381 11.22 a6 o4 015 2547
{ {1} Disputed dues of MSME - w = = . =
|1 iv) Dusputed dues of creditors other than M3ME - - - - - -
Total 13.81 15.68 0.26 004 0.15 29.93
As ut 3 Mareh 2024
Outstanding for following perleds from the date of & ti
Partlcul
artleutars Accreed Less than 1 year 1-2 yenrs 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
(i) Total outstanding dues of MSME - - - - - .
(ii) Toral curstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 1554 14l 010 0.03 038 47
{ iii) Dhsputed dues of MEME - - - - - E
{ iv) Dispoled dues of creditors other than MSME - - - - - =
Toial 15.54 741 010 0.03 [} ] 2347
The Company does not have any disputed dues winch are payable as at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023
18 Carrent Mimanclal linbillties - other financial Babilities Asat Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Emplayee related payables 152 35 3167
Security deposits received 102 1 59 1.02
.54 5.12 4.68
19 Other current liabilitiea Asat As at As ait
31 March 2028 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Statutory dues payable b6 266 163
0,63 2.66 3.63
20 Current provisions Asat As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 1024 1 April 2023
Provision for employee benefils
Graluity 058 058 03
Compensated absences 0d6 - .
Provision for contingency (refer note 31) 24 80 - -
25.83 0.58 0,34
M t of provision for ing
Opening Balance - = -
Proviston created during the year 24 80 - "
Utilisation/ reversals during the year - - -
Closing balance 74 RD = =
21 Income tax liability (net) Asal As at As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Prowvision for Income tax - 2368
13,68




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U35S101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{AH amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

22 Revenue from operations

Sale of services

- Room revenue

- Food and beverage revenue

- Recreation and other services

For the year ended
31 March 2025

146.03
33.78
5.75

205.56

For the year ended
31 March 2024

168.78
4.75
4.78

248.31

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the
performance obligation is over/ services delivered. Advance collection is recognhised when payment is received before the related performance
obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms / restaurant/ banquets. Revenue is recognised once the
performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services. Excess of revenue over invoicing is
recorded as unbilled revenue. Revenue recognised in the staement of profit and loss is same as the contracted price.

Contract liabilities
Advance from customers

Trade receivables

23 Other income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

Consumption of food and beverages

As at
31 March 2025

11.46

For the year ended
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

6.31

Note: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above trade receivables is converted into cash within the same operating cycle.

For the year ended
31 March 2024

31 March 2025

- on bank deposits 6.28 924
Miscellaneous income 1.90 10.61
8.18 19.85

24 Cost of materials consumed For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

Inventory at the beginning of the year 1.05 1.23

Add : Purchases during the year 25.57 32,97

Inventory at the end of the year (1.30) (1.05)
2532 33.15




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U35S101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, uniess otherwise stated)

25 Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended

Salaries, wages, gratuity and bonus
Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Compensated absences

Staff welfare expenses

a. Defined Contribution plans

31 March 2028 31 March 2024
51.14 55.76
2.57 3.07
0.48 0.63
3.00 217
57.18 61.64

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund,
Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' State Insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The company has no obligations other than to make the
specified contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to
Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' State Insurance for the year aggregated to INR 2.57 (31 March 2024 - INR 3.07) Also refer note 31.

b. Compensated absences
The Principal assumptions used in determining the obligation are as given below:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
% %o
Discounting rate 649 T.15
Salary growth rate 550 5.50
¢. Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity

i) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15
days salary (Yast drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

i) These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, inherent interest rate risk , longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds

Interest rate risk
The defined benefit obligation catculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Longevity risk
The present vatue of the defined benefic plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participantsboth during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk
Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

iii) The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for
the said plan:

a) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 0.20 0.20
[nterest cost 000 0.06

Expected retum on plan assets = -

Total expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 0.30 0.26

IR




[INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE, LIMITED

CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounis in INR millions, unless otherwise siated)

b) Remeasurements recognized directly in other comprehensive income

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year

Net actuarial {gain)/loss recognized in the year

- changes in demographic assumptions

- changes in financial assumptions

- changes in experience adjustments

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income

¢) Change in present value of benefit obligation

Particulars

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

[nterest cost

Actuarial {gain)/loss on obligations

Benefits paid

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

d) Amounts recognized in Balance shee¢

Particulars

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year
Funded status

Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

Non-curtent
Current

Particulars

Dhscounting rate (p.a.)
Salary growth rate {(p.a.)

Demographic assumptions

Retirement Age (years)
Mortality Table

Withdrawal Rate
Ages

Up to 30 Years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

¢) The Principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity beneflt obligation are as given below

0.01
{0.07
(0.06)
For the year ended
31 March 2015
1.36
0.20
0.10
(0.06)
(0.16)
1.44
As at
31 March 2025
1.44
{1.44)
0.87
0.58
As at
31 March 2025
%
6.49
5.50

As at
31 March 2025

58
100% OF [ALM
{2012-2014)
%o

61
6l
61

[) The Company best estimate of vxpense for the nexst year is TNR 0,25 (31 March 2024 - INR 0.26)

(0.01)
0.28
0.27
For the year ended
31 March 2024
0.33
0.20
0.06
027
1.36
As at
31 March 2024
1.36
(1.36)
0.78
0.58
As at
31 March 2024
Yo
7.15
5.50

The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the
The salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on leng term basis

As at
31 March 2024

58
100% OF [ALM
(2012-2014)
Y

61
61
61




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U3S101KA200IPTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounis in INR millions, unless o.!‘hen_w_se sterted)

g) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant acwarial assumiptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Increase * Decrease * Increase * Decrease *
Discount rate {0.5% movement) (0.01) 0.01 {0.01) 001
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 0.01 (0.01} 0.01 (0.01)

Although the analysis does not take account of the tull distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown,

* Positive amount represents increase in provision

* Negative amount represents decrease in provision

Sensitivity changes due to withdrawal and mortality are not matecial and hence not disclosed
There was no change in the method and assumptions used in preparing the senstivity analysis from prior years

h) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Year As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

0-1 year 0.58 0.58
1-2 year 0.45 0.43
2-3 year 0.20 0.17
3-4 year 0.08 0.07
4-5 year 0.03 0.03
5-6 year 0.01 0.01
More than 6 year 0.10 0.07

1.44 1.36

i) The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2025 is | 24 vears (31 March 2024: 1.27 vears)




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: UIS101 KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR miflions, unless otherwise siated)

26  Fimance costs

Other tinance costs

27  Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

28  Other expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Adveriisement and business promotion
Commission

Communication expenses
Consumption of stores and supplies
Contractual labour

CSR Expenses (Refer note 40)
General administration expenses
Insurance

Legal and professional charges
Management and incentive fees
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors *

Power, fuel and water

L oss allowance for trade receivables
Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance expenses

*Payment to aunditors comprises
As Auditor
Statutory audit

19  Exceptional items

Property tax paid under one time settlement scheme

30  Earnpings/(loss) per share (EPS)

Net (loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS
Nominal value of equity share {INR)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (INR)

Diluted (loss)/eamings per share (INR)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

0.05 0.04
0.05 0.04
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
23.05 22.75
23.05 22.75
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
4.69 351
4,64 837
3.32 4.62
0.43 0.21
1t.15 8.64
17 0.90
6,95 9.78
1.60 1.36
112 0.64
0.77 0.88
0.99 091
56.27 1.34
- 1139
1.76 5.14
0.36 024
18.46 2090
0.93 =
39.03 8.66
4.11 3.40
157.75 90.89
0.36 0.24
0.36 0.24
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
58.70 -
58.70 -
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(158.99) 41.44
8437500 84,37.500
84.37,500 §4,37,500
10 10
(18.84) 491
(18.84) 491
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INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U3S101KA2003PTC032773
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

33

Related party disclosures

a) Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists

Description of relationship Name of the Party

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited (w.e.f 04 October 2024)
Shareholder Me. A.Murali Krishna Reddy (till 04 October 2024)
Shareholder Ms. G.Avanija Reddy (till 04 October 2024)
Shareholder Mt. S.Ashok Vardhan Reddy (till 04 October 2024)
Shareholder M. S.Prithvi Vardhan Reddy (till 04 October 2024)
Sharcholder Ms. S.Shashikala Reddy (till 04 October 2024)
Shareholder Mr. G.Raishekar Reddy (till 04 October 2024)

b) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place

Nature of relationship

Name of related party

G. Avanija Reddy

Managing Director

Ashok Vardhan Reddy

Whole Time Director

A. Muralikrishna Reddy

Chairman

(¢) Related party transactions during the period:

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Legal and professional fees (including capitalised
amount in CWIP)

SAMHI Hotels Limited

3175 7

Remuneration

A, Muralikrishna Reddy

= 6.00

Ashok Vardhan Reddv

- 4.80

G. Avaniia Reddy

(d) Related party balances as at the period end

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1 April 2023

Trade payvables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

5.47 -

Remuneration

G. Avaniia Reddy

- 0.36

0.36

A. Muralikrishna Reddy

- 0.36

0.36

Ashok Vardhar Reddy

- 0.30

0.30




INNMAK TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Neten Lo ilee financial stateomerns for che year cnded 31 March 1025
(AN e i SNR milfeons, unless oviereiie staved)

M Fimancial instruments — Fuir vahses and rish mosupeonent

A) Ferancial insirenaends by eadegory and far value

The below table izes the jud) and sl made in
i of the inpuls used in derermining fair value, the Company bas classified is fingnowl msaments i the thiee levels

which (ar valnes are disckysed in the finangial To provide an mdicaticn abou the rell
preseribed under the accounting standord

ining Lhe Fair values of the Mnancial i thal arc {ay A and d at aic value and {b) measured at amortised cost and Tor

31 March 2025
Purticulary Level of Hicrarchy Far Vabe Through Profil | Fair Yalue Through Amortised Cosl
aad Lass (FYTPL) Othver Coniprehessiee
Iniessme (FYTOLCT)
Finantindanseis
Men-turrent fnancial gasets - Othern - - 3359
Current financinl asseis - Trade receivables - - 1144
il use - Cash and cash eijuivalents 1 £ 2 Libk
Curvent financial sesets - Oihers - - 43113
Total fmancial acsels - - T4
Financial liahilities
Carcent financial abilitics - Trads payablas -1 - 1M
Cumreni (inancial liabilities - Cthers - - 1M
Total financiol linhilities - - 247

31 March 2024
Level of Hicrardsy Fair Yalue Thesugh Prafid | Fair Valoe Through | Amoriised Cost

Farti 2
feulirs and Loss (FVTPL) Ouher Comprehengive
Income (FYTOCT)
Financial sesely
Mon-curront finncial asscts « Oihers - . 21113

romt financial assers - Tradi recenvablis - = 431
Current financial wsuets - Cash and cash cquivalents _ - - 796 |
Currenn Mnancial sssces - Loans - - 1541

Toual mancial asets - - 24081
Vinangial fiahilities
Current Anancinl habilites « Trade pavables - - 2547
Current financml labilies - Others - - 512

Total financial Habibites - - 2850

| April 2023
Partlculurs Level of Hierarchy Fuir ¥ahue Throwgh Profi Fair Value Through Amoriised Canl
and Logs (FVTPL) Hher Comprehensive
Ingome (FVTOCT
Financisl aaseis
Mon-current Anancial gssets - Others - - TR T2
Cwiremi fnancial asseis - Trade receivables = - L6
Cwirenl francial aceeis - Cash and cach cowival - - R5S
Currenl francial acseis - Losns = = TR 44
Total financinl asseis - - 10074
Finuncial labilifles
Cumeni financial | - Irade povables = = 67
Currem linancinl o ~ Dihera - - 408
Total financial linbitities - - AdH

The management agscssed that the Fair vahue of cash and cash equivakenis, Lrade receivables, security deposits unbilled revenge, trade and other payables and olticr cument financial asiets and liabilitics approximate dreir
camying ameounts largely due Lo the sl ilics of ticse i
Fair vahusdion of nan-currenl fmancial assers and liabilitics has been disclosed 1o be same a8 camying value as there i no significant dilference helween camying value and fair value

The company has not done any hedging transaclions during Uhe yoar

B} Mcasurzmnt of Fair values.

This se¢tlon cxplaims the jod| and esi miads m ok inimg the fair vohses ol the Ghancial i hal afe (a) ksed and d an Tair value and {b) measured a1 amorvised cogt and Far
which Fair valuce are digchoged in e Minancial To provids an indicasion abour e reliabiliyy of the inpuis wsed in determining fair vabue. the Company has classificd its financial instnunonts o the
three levels p ibed wnder the ing standard An cxp of cach level follows underneath the lable

All asscts and Tiabilncs for which far vahue is measurcd or disclosed in the financial staicments ar; calcgonised within the fair valuc hicrarchy, deseribed as follows. based on the lowest level mpod that iz
significant Lo the Far value mcasurement as o whoke:

= Level | — Quoted (unadjusied) marker prices in active markes for identical assels or liabilities

= Level 2 — Valaation echniques for which the lowest Jovel mpuot thal is sigmificomt 1o the Far valoe is dircelly or indlrectly observable

= Leveh 3 = Valuarion echniqued for which the lowess level mpud chal i gignificant 1o the Fair valee meagurement is unobserable

There are no ransfer between Level 1. Level 2.and Level 3 durmg the year

) Finaricial rikk masagermeni
Risk nwnagement framework

The Company & 260y ities eypose it 1o 2 vancly of inancral risks markes risk rincluding foregn ¢chonge risk aud nilerest rate ngk), creda nsk avd hgusdiey risk

The Hekding Company 5 Chael Financial Cificcr under thee dincctions of the board of dircotors imploments financial rish management policics acoss the Compeone The Compams s nisk n policies are
1o adentity and analvse e risks faced by the Compans 1o $e1 appropriate risk limits and conteols 40 momlor nsks 2d adherence 1o limits m arder (o monmmeee U Mavcial wmpact of such nsks The risk management
policies and s1sloms are revicwed regnlady torefcer changes in market condilions and the Company 5 aclinitics

1. Markel righ
Miarkes visk 15 the nisk it the changes in markel prces such as foregn exchange rawes and mierest raees: ot will affect the Compats $ cxpeise or e vohue o 15 Boldwgs of fmancial stroments, The objectns of markee
nsh managenent s 1o wanage and contrel marked nsk csposwes witlin acceplable paamciers. while optinugmg e renun

a Toieiesd vane risk
rncrast o wish 15 1 onsk chian ihe Gor «alug on Gl e cash s s ol o Gisancipl imspmnd st Myeluaste because of chanees o matke inlcrcst racs
The Company ded nol hes amn bomowings dunng e carrenn ycar and presiaug year




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
Minted 1 the finandal staemens for ike year eoded 39 March 2025
(Al amowmis m INR medfions, unless oihenitce Hated)

b, Cowrrency rigk.
Currency nsk for the Company. in e risk that e fituie casl sutlows on atcomt of payalilis Ty Fees and ather i will Nuciae because of chanpes in forcign exchange rates The Company is
expoded o the effeets of Muctuntion m the pravailing fareign cuerency exchanae rates on it (oot position and cash Mows, Exposure arises primarity due Lo exehanpe rate i ions between the functional currency

ind other cusroncics. The Musagenent evaliatis foreign eschangs rate exposre arising from (et cumemey ransactions on periodic basis and Tolkows sppropriale rigk inanagemend policics.

The Company does mal hove any swstanding foreign curreticy cxpesure 28 a1 31 March 20235, 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023

il. Credit risk

Credid risk is the risk of finaiscial foss o the Company if & cuslomer or counterpanty 1o  Mrancial instrament fails 1o meet it coniractual obligations. The carmying amount of financial assels represent the masimumn credi
risk exposors The Comipany has credin policics in plags and Uhe expasimes to these eredit Ngks are monitored on an angamg basis,

The Company's policy i 10 place cash and eash cqoivalents snd othor benk balances with bands and Ginancial incaution counierpanies with good credit rating,

The Company has given scourity deposits 1o varions staiory authoriics and 1o vendors For securing services from hem and renial deposits for eniployes accomodations  Funher, the Company has other receivable
balanees pistanding s at year ond (rom verdors against cost reimbursement The Campany docs nol expecl aniy dolaull rom these partics and accordingly the risk of defanll is nogligible or nil.

In respect of creddt exposures from lrade reccivables, the Company has eswblished a credit policy wnder which each acw customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before enleriog ke comtract Credin liniils are
enablished for cach cusiemer, rovicwed eegularty and any sales exceeding those limits requirc approval from the appropriate suthority.

There are 20 signilicant concenralicns of credit risk witiin the Conpany

The: Company considers 2 imancial asset 1o be in delaul when:

+the debiar 1z unlikely 1o pay its crodit obligations w the Growp in full; or
* Lhe financial as6el is more thaw (%o years past due

Reconciliatian of loss slowance provision

For i year eoded For (he year ended
‘Trade receivahks 31 Manh 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance - -
Change m bozs allowance UALE] -
Clacing hatance 93 -

iil. Liquidity risk

Liguidity rvak 15 thie eisk fliat the Compamy will encounter diificully in metting Lhe obligations associated wath its financial labiliics thal are seiled by delivering cash o¢ another Anancial asser The Compiny s approach ig
matiogmy fiquidiey 1= (o eneure, o5 far as posaible, thar it will have suiTicient liquidity 1o meet i liabilinies wheu they are due, wnder bioth normal e stressed condrsons, withouw inciming onacceplable losges o risking
damage 1o Company s repyiseion

Managament monilos rolling forecosts of the Company s liquidity position and cash and cash equivaicnis on the basis of expecied cash Nows (o ensure it has iend cash Lo meet ional nzeds Such ing
lakes ino eomsideriiion the Company ‘s debt reflnoncing plans, undraw « itted borrowlng fagilitics and covenant complimce
Ultimade: resgonzibilily for liquadily risk managemen rests with the board of dircziors, which has csablished an appropriato liquidiey risk B i k for the - of Ihe Compauy's short-ems, mediom

tenn and lang-term (unding and liquidily managemend requirements

The iable below summarises the maturity profile of the Company s financial Kabilitics based an I undi; d

Ax . 31 March 2025

Carrying amsunt Toal 01 year 1-1 years 2-5years  Modt thn 5
yers
Ron - derivative Nnascial liabitities
Coment Trade payables 1993 1612 1568 026 414 -
Other financial liabilites 254 254 T8 - »
3247 1H.66 18,22 .26 .18 -
Ag a1 31 Murch 2024 Contraciual cash fws
Cardying amaust Total 0] year 1-3 yeaws 2-5years  Morcikan 5
years
Mom - derivative Amancial Nabfites
Current Trade payabhes n47 19 74 oln a4
Other Ninancial labiliics 5.12 112 512 - -
M50 1304 12.53 [T Al -
AQ at 0L April 2923 Contriciual cash Oows
Carrying amgun) Totud 01 year 1-1 yeurs 15 yan More than 3
YEA
Non - derivative fimancal liahitiic
Cumen Trade payables 2047 1067 a7 - -
Ciber financial liabilings 468 40it 468 - - -
MM MM BERT] - - -
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INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

38 Key accounting changes
A - Impact of First time adoption of Ind AS

38.1 First-time adoption of Ind-AS

a. The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement
principles prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued thereunder and other accounting principles
genrally accepted in India ("IndAS®).

b. The Company’s management (‘the management’) had issued Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively that were prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2021 (‘Indian GAAP?),

¢. The transition to IndAS was carried out from the accounting principles generally accepted in India (‘Indian GAAP’)L
which is considered as “Previous GAAP” as defined in IndAS 101. “First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards™. An explanation of how the transition to IndAS has impacted the Company’s equity and profits/loss is
provided in the Reconciliation of Equity as at 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 and Reconciliation of profit/loss for the
year ended 31 March 2024. The preparation of these Financial Statements resulted in changes to the accounting policies
as compared to most recent annual financial statements prepared under Indian GAAP. The accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all period presented in these Financial Statements, They have also been applied in|
preparing the IndAS opening Balance Sheet as at | April 2023 (date of transition) for the purpose of transition (o
IndAS required by IndAS 101, The impact arising from the adoption of IndAS on the date of transition has been
adjusted against other equity.

d. The items in the Financial Statements have been classified considering the principles under IndAS 1, “Presentation of]
Financial Statements”, The Management of the Company has prepared the Standalone Financial Statements which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at | April 2023 and as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and loss, Staterent of}
Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024 and Reconciliation of Equity as at |
April 2023 and as at 31 March 2024, Reconciliation of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024, Notes to
First-time adoption, Notes to Reconciliation and Material Accounting Policies,

€. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements,
including the balance sheet as at | April 2023 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024,




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

38.2 Exemptions and exceptions applied
A.Exemptions

Ind AS 101 First-Time Adoption of Ind AS allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective
application of certain requirements under ind AS. For transition to Ind AS, the Company has applied the following
exemptions;

(1) Deemed cost for property, plant

IndAS 101 permits a first time adopter to measure the carrying value for all of its Property Plant and equipment at fair
value in the financial statements as at the date of transition to IndAS and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of
transition. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at fair value at the
date of transition.

B. Exceptions

Ind AS 101 First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards provides first-time adopters certain exceptions from
the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. For transition to Ind AS, the Company has applied
the following exceptions:

(i) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for|
transactions occurring on or after | April 2023 (the transition date).

(ii) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires that an eatity should assess the classification of its financial assets on the basis of facts and
circumstances exist on the date of transition. Accordingly, in its Opening Ind AS Balance Sheet, the company has
classified all the financial assets on basis of facts and circumstances that existed on the date of transition, i.e. 1 April
2023,

(lii) Impairment of flnancial assets
The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind|
AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine
the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at
the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at
the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as
permitted by Ind AS 101,

{iv) Estimates

The entity’s estimates in accordance with IndAS at the date of transition to IndAS shall be consistent with estimatesL
made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting
policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in errot,




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED
CEN: UISIMKANBIPTC0IITTS
Miten 1o the Ananclal satements for the year cnded 31 March 2025

LALL st iry ENTE s, uindess tbcrwse datad)

3.3 Fhwl the Ind AS sdepiien reconcilations - Eees of Ind AS ndoptlam on dhe balunce sheel as at 1 Apell 2023

Notes Indlun GAAP Other sdimtmends Mf.l‘r;:ulm ol Y per Ind AS
ASSETS
L Nos-curramt anvels
{a} Propenty. plant and cquipmen| B4 157 &7 145078 140845
(b) Financisl atsets
Onher financral aasers T ™
vc) Income e astets inet) - W9 26 6%
(dy O nom=curment. assas i W42 - (DR
Tatad nam-currem asain 157.75 [TEFT LASnTR 1724, 36
TL Currust anspls
14) Inventeries 16 - - 161
i) Financial acsets
(i) Trade recenvabibes Mt (569) 254
tiry Cash and cash equrvalenis &l J6 ran 2 855
i) Loans %01 244 - mad
i) Other curren), assels 3 4 6 - ShR
Tutal current aveis THLAL 1124.82)) - (BEXE]
Taind Aswrts 40136 LR ] LASe TR LEHLES
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(8] Equily share capilal B4 18 - 3438
(b Other cquity
1) Cupitat Redeniplion Resarve 6563 65 63
tiy  General Resave 4472 - 4472
{ii) Restamad camimgs kLT3 [ Bl 1,0R2 94 1,206 23
{iv} Other comy ive mcome - B of defived benebit - .
ligbliy
Todal equity 31830 [EFET 1AMAE
11, Nometurremt Natrilltha
[a) Mon-cument provswns el 082 OR2
(b) Defiamed Lao: Inability {ner) et 1357 365 68 IR0 X7
i€} Other non curren habilivies Lo {100 . =
Todal Hum current liabilitics 1460 (102 158 EITE
TTL. Currani Habithes
fa) Financial ligblline
1) Trade payshiea
~ Tolal g duet of mi riset and small . .
- Total guistonding ducs of ereditars olher than micro emleprises and 1775 192 2367
amall enterprises
(i) Other financia lishililics 468 468
by Other cwrrend lishilitics 2769 (24 06) - ied
)} Short-tam provisions me2 270 2419 081 034
id) Incovne taoc linbility (nel) 1 AR - 168
Totul current Habiliites] o] .97 [TY] 2,01
Tutal ﬁ!hhv anid Llabilltion 400,38 (LARY] LASLT?Y | a4




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOT—ELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: UISI0LE A 200PTCR32773

Nutes to the finsncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2034
(AN ammonts i INR millioss, anleds dtherwide stated)

39,4 First time Tnd AS adopdioa recenciliations - Effect of [nd AS adapdiom an the halance sheet s at 31 Mach 2024

Motes =
Az per IGAAP Diler Effect of Ag per Ind AS
adjustments | transitien to Ind
AS
ASSETS
L Nen-current assets
a) Propery, plant and equipment 3ol 15099 L437 B6 [.58% 84
(b) Financial asgets -
Onher financial assets - s - 20113
{e) Income Lax assels (mt) - 702 - 702
td) Other non-current assets 0ok 111 64 - 1072
Tetal non-current asseis 151.06 .79 143756 1,817.71
I, Current agsets
(@) vcurories 145 - [ICH
(b} Financial asseis
() Trade receivables 1149 (5 18} - (X1
i) Cash and cash cquivalenis 208 24 (200 28) - 796
{iii) Loans 1601 {ir 60} - 1541
() Orthir purrent assete 5602 (5214 - 328
Total eprrent assets 29321 (258,810 - 3441
Total Asseis 44427 1300t} LAY AR 1B52.12
|EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
{a) Equily sharc capital B4 38 - 8438
(b} Instrumcnts entirely equily in natne
by Other cquity
(i} Capital Redemption Peserve 65 63 - &5 63
{i)  General Reservs 4n - 4472
(i) Retained eamings e 17433 107307 124740
{iv] Dther prehensive: income = R of defined ez 3l [%]]
benefit liabiliy
Totasl equity 16908 1.473.58 1,442 52
1, Mon=current linbiliies
fa) Mon-curront provisions 362 - 1.1 1.74
{b)  Deferred tax liability {nat) s 12 88 363 04 31591
(cy Other non curment liabilities 139 41 50y - -
Total nem-current lishilities I4.46 {1.5%) 363.04 it
111, Current linbilities
Ia) Firancial Lighiliics
i) Trade payabls
- Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small crerprises -
- Total ding dues of ¢roditors other than mi be i 1195 I1L5 D47
(iii} Other Rnancial liabilitics ENY 52
(b) Othor current ligbikities 2802 (25360 266
() Shon-term provisiens JE62 2014 119 700 (1
Total current linhilities 66,76 § RIE]
Tutal (.'HII“\‘ umdl linbilities 444,27 {30.0%) 1.850.34




INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U35101KA2003PTC032773

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

38.6 Note on key reconciliation Ind AS adjustments

|. As permited under IndAS Q1 permits an entity to elect to measure an ilem of property, plant and equipment at the
date of transition to IndAS at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date. Accordingly, the
Company has elected to use the fair value of all the items of property, plant and equipment on the date of transition
and designate the same as deemed cost Fair value has been determined, by obtaining an external third party valuation
report. Accordingly as at April 1, 2023, the net carrying value of property, plant and equipment has increased by Rs
145G 78 with a commesponding adjustment to retained earnings. The loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 has
increased on account of additional depreciation by Rs. 19.61. Consequently, the property plant and equipment and
total equity as at March 31, 2024 has increased by Rs 143786

2. Both under Indian GAAP and IndAS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit
plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, meluding actuarial gains and losses, are charged to
profit or loss. Under IndAS, remeasurements {comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding|
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Due to this, for the year ended March 31, 2024 remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans amounting to Rs. 0.53
has been recognised in the OCI and the employee benefit cost is increased by same amount

3. Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) separately. Hence, it has
reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or loss a5 per IndAS. Further, Tndian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled
to total comprehensive income as per IndAS

4. Under Indian GAAP, certain assets and liabilities have been reclassified in accordance with Ind AS. Furthermore,
reclassification adjustments have been made within the heads of profit and loss statement to ensure appropriate
classifiaction in accordance with Ind AS




[INNMAR TOURISM AND HOTELS FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: L3518 KATIDIPTC032773

Notes o #he financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025
AN amouniz in IR millions, waless atherwese siated)

39 Ralio Amalysis snd its el

Ratia in times! Mutneratar I i 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Increase/ decrease %%

() Curreni Ratio 1 umes Curram Assats Currain Lialsilities I 45 (He 34%

(1) Detu-Equity Ralier in limes Tolal Bomowings Tatal equily - - %

(¢} Debl Servics Coverage Raio  in limes Profit before finance cost, deprecialion, Interss: Paymenis + (52210 1.56%67 -128%

amerisation and lax Principal Repayments

{d} Retun1 on Equity Rane Lass for the year Average Total aquiry =11 F6% 201% =500%

(&) Imventony lurmover ralic Cost of goods sold Averape Invenlony 16 3% 21 65 =25

(1) Trade Receivables wumover ratio Revenue from operalions Average Trade Receivables 2314 1536 1%

() Trade payables umover ran Cost of ial o + Other Average Trade Payables 005 125 =20%

() Med capilal lumover ralio in tmes Revenua ffom operalions Average Current assels - 14 06 24 bk
Average Cumrent liabilities

(1) Mel prodil ratio % Loss for the year Revenue from operalions =17 34% 16 9% SR

1)) Return on Capicd employed n % Laoss before Mhance cosis and Laxes Tungible MeL Worth + Towld -3 Ro% 4 |d% -193%
Bomowings

| (k) Retum on invesument wit e Isrest (Finance Inconie) Investiment 1-23% 1 el =244

Explanations fo variance in Ratios:

Current Ruyo Current rmtio hss ineressed due (o morease in ourren! sssels

Lrebi Seryice Coverpee Rano The ratio has decrensed due 1o a sigm Goant loss before finance cost. depreciation, md tax, resulting i pesative esmings avalable for

HRutum on Eguity Ralio The ritio has decreased due o o sumificant loss befone Lax

Trade Receivables wmover s [ The ratho has inerented dug 1o Tower avetasg trade teceivables

Met copoad urmever filio The ratio bas incrensod a3 o resull of reduction in not working eapital,

| Net prafit imiio ‘The ratre has decreased due o the company incurnng a sienilicant nes loss during the vear, compared 1o o vrofic i the previous vear

Restum on Cagrital emploved. e radte has deereaged dui o a shifl Trvm profin to operiting loss, |esding o negative retums on the eqpiul employed.

Retymm. on uvestiment "Tiie ratio has decrensed due o 4 fall 1 Gnance ncome

The Company has not presented the (ollowing ratios doe 1o the reasons given below:
() tnveniory imover ralio: since the value of inventory is insignificant a5 compared 10 [he olal assels
(b Retumn on investments: since the Company invests surplus temporary (unds in sharl lerm bank deposits and the income generaled is insignificant 1o lotal lumover

49 Corporak saclal responsibillty

As per Szction |33 of the ies Act, 2013, a ¥ mesting the applicability threshold, needs 1o spend al least 2% of ils average net profits for the i diateky g three
years on Corporale social responsibility (CSR) activities The areas for CSR activities are, promuoling education, healihcare, destitule care ad rehabilitation, envtrrmmenl susunnahnhly and rural
development projects. The Company was required w spend INR 1 12 for e vear ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 - IR 0.64) and the Conupany actually spent INR 112 for the year ended
31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 - INR 0 64) on the activities which are specified in the Schedule VT of the Companies Act, 2013 A lingly, there are ne unspent anounds as at 3] March 2023

41 Other siatutery informaation
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been iniiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

{ii) The Conmany do net have any Iransactions with companies strock ofl.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satislfaciion which is yei 1o be regi d with Regisirar of Companies {ROC) beyond the slaiutory period

{iv) The Company has not traded or invesied in Crypio curmency or Virual Cumeney during lhe ﬁn:m‘.lul yeur

{¥) The Company has not advanced or loaned ar invested funds 1o any olher p o ies), including foreign entilies (| diaries) with the und ding thal the I diary shall:
(ay directly or indivectly lend or invesl in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whalsoeve( by or on behall"of the " {Uliimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or he like 1o of on beha (ol the Ullimale Beneficianies

{vi} The Company has nol received wny fund from amy p ar enlityfies), including foreign antities (Funding Party) with the und. ding {whether ded in wriling o atherwise) that Lhe

Company zhall:
(a) direedy or indirecily lend or invest in other persons of enlities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behall of the Funding Panty (Ullimete Beneficianes) or
(b) proside any guarantze, secueity of the like on behall of Lhe Ullimale Beneficiaries

(vit} The Company does not have any such Leamsaction which is ol recorded in the books of accownts that has been surrendered or disclosed a5 income during Lhe year in the 1ax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevanl provisions of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961

(¥iii) The Cempany has not granied any loans or advances in the nalure of loans (o promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 20137 either severally or
joiny with any other person that are repayable on demand or withow specifying any terms or period of repayment

(%) The Conepany has complied with number of layers prescribed under the Companies Acl, 2013

{x) The Company has nod entered inlo any scheme of amrangement which has an accounling impact on curmenl or previous (inancial year

xi) The Company 15 not required 10 submil g relpms o with banks Juring the clamen| oF previous year

41 SAMHI Hotels Limited ¢'the holding Company™) vide i15 share-holder meeting daed 20 May 2025 approved primary invesimen and subscription of equity shares by Reco Bellflower Privale
Limited, an aiMiliate of GIC Pte Limited ("Invesior’) to hold 33% of the equity share caplull fon a fully-diluted basis) of Ascent Hotels Privae Limited, SAMHI IV Business Halets Private Limined
and Tnnimar Towism and Hoddls Private Limited Target Companies } The bi prise value of the Target Companies has been ascribed a1 TNR 22,000 million

As per our repon of 2ven dale atached
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